COVENTRY BOARD OF EDUCATION
APPROVED MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING OF THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2006

Members Present: Milton S. Natusch, Chairman
Kathleen Ryan, Secretary
Jennifer Beausoleil
Craig Couture
Larry Pietrantonio
Cheryl Trudon

Members Absent: Richard Williams, Vice-Chairman

Administrators Present: Dr. Donna Bernard, Superintendent
Sherry Holmes, Fiscal Services Director

Also Present: Jean Lundquist, Student Representative

Also present were CHS Girls Volleyball Team Coach Matt Hurlock and Assistant Jon Roberts,
the CHS Girls Volleyball Team, a couple of Contemporary Issues students, and a couple of
people in the Audience of Citizens. No newspapers were represented. All motions are directed
to the Coventry Board of Education.

l. CALL TO ORDER

By:  Chairman M. Natusch Time: 7:31 p.m.
Place: Administration Building Meeting Room

1. SALUTE TO THE FLAG
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman M. Natusch.
Chairman M. Natusch asked if Board members had any agenda items to add.

MOTION: To add an Executive Session concerning the secretarial contract at the end of
the meeting.
By: L. Pietrantonio Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

MOTION: To move XI.A, Information: Shandong, China Visit — K. Ryan to the position
of IV.B.
By: C. Trudon Seconded: J. Beausoleil
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

11/30/06 Coventry Board of Education, Page 1 of 5



I11. AUDIENCE OF CITIZENS

No one came forward; the Audience of Citizens was closed.

IV. REPORT OF THE SUPERINTENDENT

A. Student Recognition: CHS Girls Volleyball Team — State Championship

Dr. Bernard noted that this portion of the meeting would be broadcast on Channels 13 and 17.
She commended each member of the team for winning the state championship. Each girl
received a book card and Coventry water bottle. Assistant Coach Jon Roberts said it has been “a
pleasure and an honor to work with these ladies,” and congratulated them for their hard work.

L. Pietrantonio said that the girls team “could be classified as a dynasty” since this is the fourth
year they’ve won the championship. “There’s nothing like 22-0!" he said.

B. Information: Shandong, China Visit — K. Ryan
The presentation was postponed to the next meeting due to technical difficulties.
V. CONSENT AGENDA - None.

VI. REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN
Information: CABE/CAPSS Convention Review

Chairman M. Natusch said that he, Dr. Bernard, and J. Beausoleil recently attended this
convention, where they had an opportunity to meet with other board of education members and
superintendents, and attend workshops and general sessions. He said that one workshop, one on
the roles and responsibilities of board members, was “very enlightening.” Another one which
was quite informational was on how to advocate for your budget and stay within legal guidelines.
He said there was some information which might have implications not only for the Coventry
Board of Education but also for the Coventry Town Council.

J. Beausoleil commented that as a Board member there are some things you may think you can
do that you in fact can not, and conversely there are some things that you may think you can not
do, but can. Dr. Bernard said that copies of information will be made and put into the Board
packets.

Chairman M. Natusch said another workshop he attended was led by a new superintendent from
Stratford. One of his major tasks was to try to bring the community together; his presentation
dealt with how this was accomplished.

Chairman M. Natusch also related that Richard Simmons spoke on youth fitness, about how even

having a student move around for a few minutes stimulates their mind. Rebecca Lobo of UConn
womens basketball fame also spoke.

11/30/06 Coventry Board of Education, Page 2 of 5



J. Beausoleil said that one of the introductory speakers was Dr. Harrington, who spoke about
basic skills and that basic skills really mean much more than is usually thought. She said she
also attended a session on pending educational legislation, saying that there are “many more
mandates” coming that will cause us to “make difficult choices.” She said she attended an
interesting presentation by the Bristol superintendent on how that district was able to get a
$400,000 grant to fund five years of after-school learning to expand what the children were
learning, thereby getting the district off the No Child Left Behind “list.” She said the
superintendent stressed that the after-school program has to build on what’s going on during the
day — that the program was “not just day-care.”

VIl. COMMUNICATIONS

Chairman M. Natusch said that he just recently received a letter, of which each Board member
has a copy, asking for support for a Vietnam veterans’ memorial on school grounds. He said that
a member of the Town Council stated that the Board was not in favor of the memorial. This is
not true, said Chairman Natusch — we only just received the letter. Unfortunately, however, the
Hartford Courant repeated the Councilperson’s comments and did not verify their validity. He
said that the Board members’ position is one of trust in the community, and commended them
for their “restraint” in this matter.

VIIl. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
VOTE: Approve Minutes of November 9, 2006

J. Beausoleil requested two changes. The first sentence of page 3 should read as follows: “J.
Beausoleil said she has talked to some parents whose children were in the program, and their
response was that the program increased their children’s independent reading.” On page 4, under
“Approval of Minutes,” the second paragraph should read as follows: “Dr. Bernard said that, for
the public record, the subject of possibly reinstating the positions of the 1.0 CNH Tech Ed
teacher, the .5 GHR librarian, and the CHS athletic trainer that the Town Council cut from the
budget previously, will be discussed at the next Board meeting, November 30.”

MOTION: To approve minutes of November 9, 2006 as amended.
By: L. Pietrantonio Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes 5-0-1 (K. Ryan abstains)
IX. OLD BUSINESS - None.
X.  NEW BUSINESS
A. Information and VOTE: Capitol Improvement Plan — S. Holmes
Mrs. Holmes referred to the draft of “Coventry Board of Education FY2008—FY2013 CIP
Summary” in the Board packets. She said there was also a three-page document on each of the

26 projects on the spreadsheet. There is not particular order of items on the spreadsheet. Some
of the projects have been “packaged together” so as to exceed the required $20,000 per project

11/30/06 Coventry Board of Education, Page 3 of 5



threshold, said Mrs. Holmes. She said she has to hand the CIP over to the Town Manager
tomorrow, so she is bringing this before the Board tonight for information and a vote.

C. Trudon noted that the new Town Council has had “several issues” regarding details of the
CIP. Mrs. Holmes said that the Town Manager takes the spreadsheet, puts it “in his own order,”
and presents it to the Town Council. She said she has indicated to the Town Manager in the past
that it is in no particular order.

A brief discussion ensued.

MOTION: To place at the bottom of the “Coventry Board of Education FY2008-FY2013
CIP Summary” the notation that the projects are in no particular order.
By: L. Pietrantonio Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

MOTION: That we approve the “Coventry Board of Education FY2008-FY2013 CIP
Summary.”
By: C. Trudon Seconded: L. Pietrantonio
Discussion. J. Beausoleil said that historically the Board asks for $100,000 per
year for “Classroom Computerization/Upgrade” and doesn’t get it. She said that
the $100,000 doesn’t take into account the technology plan we submitted. Dr.
Bernard said that historically we ask the Town Council to approve $100,000, and
they cut it to $50,000. Mrs. Holmes commented that we need to incorporate some
of these things into our regular budget. Dr. Bernard said that we have often done
this in the past. J. Beausoleil suggested a $5,000 increase each year in the $100,000
figure to account for inflation. C. Trudon inquired about switch replacement,
discussed at previous Board meetings. Dr. Bernard replied that we are in the
process of taking care of this, and that the Town did approve $75,000 for the
infrastructure.
Result:  Motion passes unanimously.

MOTION: To amend the original motion to increase the classroom computerization/
upgrade by $5,000 for each year (FY2008, $100,000; FY2009, $105,000;
FY2010, $110,000, and so on).
By: J. Beausoleil Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes unanimously

Xl.  REPORT OF BOARD MEMBERS
Information: Fiscal Committee Report — R. Williams and S. Holmes

Mrs. Holmes referred to “Expenditure Reports for Regular Budget and Grants — October, 2006,”
a copy of which was in the Board packets. She said that all budget accounts look good. The
following accounts are currently being monitored: utilities, gasoline and diesel, and special
education tuition. We have not locked into a diesel fuel price as of yet and hope to lock in as
soon as the price goes down to $2.00 or less per gallon; the going rate is currently lower. She
said she had no major concerns to report at this time. She said that the grants expenditure report

11/30/06 Coventry Board of Education, Page 4 of 5



for October 2006 looks fine. We are continuing to spend down carryover money first. We did
receive our Consolidated Grant (Title I, I, IV & V) award letter from the State on November 3,
2006. She said the Excess Cost Calculation spreadsheet for October 2006 has been updated with
seven new outplacements. The total outplacements at this time now total 11, with some still
pending. Mrs. Holmes said that she will continue to do her best to monitor all budget accounts
carefully and keep the Board posted of any major budget concerns, and thanked the Board for
their continued support.

X1l. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Pursuant to CGS-1-18a(e), the Board of Education will go into Executive Session for
discussion concerning the employment, appointment, performance, evaluation, health, or
dismissal of a public official or employee — Discussion of Secretarial Negotiations.

MOTION: To go into Executive Session at 8:25 p.m. with the Superintendent and Fiscal
Services Director present.
By: L. Pietrantonio Seconded: C. Trudon
Result: Motion passes unanimously.

The Board came out of Executive Session at 8:57 p.m.

XIIl. OPEN SESSION

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: To adjourn the Board Meeting at 8:58 p.m.
By: C. Trudon Second: L. Pietrantonio

Respectfully submitted,

Susan S. Nimerowski

Board Clerk
December 14, 2006

Approved

11/30/06 Coventry Board of Education, Page 5 of 5



